MINUTES of the open portion of the regular meeting of the OAK BAY POLICE BOARD held in Council Chambers of Oak Bay Municipal Hall, 2167 Oak Bay Ave, Oak Bay, BC, on Tuesday, October 25, 2016 at 5:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Board Members: Nils Jensen, Chair

Blair Littler Brian Rendell Sandra Waddington

Chief Constable:

Deputy Chief Constable:

CAO & Police Board Secretary

Executive Assistant/Recording Secretary

Laura Lang

ABSENT: Board Member Mary Kelly

Chair called the meeting to order at 5:03 p.m.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

An updated copy of Attachment #1 of item #7 for the 2017 Provisional Budget provided to all members at the meeting. Agenda approved with the inclusion of the updated attachment.

ADOPTION OF MINUTES:

RESOLVED that minutes of the open portion of the regular meeting of the Oak Bay Police Board, held on Wednesday, September 21, 2016, be adopted.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the open portion of the special meeting of the Oak Bay Police Board, held on Wednesday, October 12, 2016, be adopted, with a change made to indicate that Blair Littler was present.

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:

Financial Reports (September 30, 2016)

Nothing of concern in the budget balances year to date.

Overtime (June (amended), July (amended), August (amended) and September, 2016)

June, July & August overtime reports were amended due to an error that had occurred on the original June report, which carried forward until August. Errors discovered after the September meeting, amended copies brought forward for information and filing.

Sick leave and Worksafe claims have continued to push the overtime higher than projected.

Chief Constable's Monthly Report (October 11, 2016)

Regarding CREST, there have been some meetings amongst the area police departments in an attempt to gain assurances that coverage and functionality of the new equipment will meet expectations. Oak Bay will be purchasing the new radios in 2017.

It is anticipated that the Oak Bay member seconded to INSET will start around the end of November. Regular joint management meetings for INSET will be held.

Oak Bay Police Strategic Plan Update (3rd Quarter Update and 2015-2016 amended Crime Stats)

Some of the action items have not been achieved due to the vacancy of the Community Liaison position. Once the vacancy is filled, some of them may be achieved this year.

The Reserve Constables weren't as involved in the Speed Watch program as hoped, but have been busy assisting patrol and with special events during this quarter. There are currently six Reserve Constables on strength with the program resurging after being down to three members earlier in the year.

A question was raised by the board regarding Earthquake Preparedness plans for the Police Department. Discussion held regarding the municipal protocols currently in place. Oak Bay Fire Department, along with the Emergency Program Manager, will take the lead on planning, organization and education. The Block Watch groups in Oak Bay are also very actively involved. At the Block Watch appreciation dinner, there will be an emergency planning presentation done by the municipal Emergency Program Manager as well as a Crime Prevention presentation. Priority protocol is handled by senior staff and management at the municipal hall in accordance with provincial protocols.

The 2015-2016 Crime statistics that were provided at the September meeting have been amended and provided to the Board. There was a cut and paste issue with the original document.

MOVED and seconded: That all of the Department Reports be received.

CARRIED

COMMUNICATIONS:

7. 2017 Provisional Police Budget

An amended provisional budget attachment was distributed at the meeting. There were two areas that were increased slightly after the agenda had been built and the amended version was not attached.

After discussion regarding the Police Board portion of the budget, it was decided to increase the budget amount for 2017 from \$12,000 to \$14,000 to allow for five (5) members to attend the Orientation session on January 14, 2017 in Burnaby, four (4) members to attend the BCAPB Conference from April 6-8, 2017 in Vancouver and three (3) members to attend the CAPG Conference from July 13-16, 2017 in Montreal, PQ.

Chief Brinton gave an overview of some areas of the budget that had either increased or decreased. Discussion held regarding future planning for potential serious crimes and funding options available. It was determined that the contribution into a reserve for this purpose should be increased from \$50,000 to \$80,000.

The reduction in Capital Expenses for 2017 is in large part due to the building renovations that were done in 2016, as well as no planned vehicle purchase in 2017.

MOVED and seconded: That the 2017 Provisional Budget be approved after the changes have been made and forwarded to Oak Bay Council for approval.

CARRIED

Discussion regarding the 2017 financial reporting process was held and the Board decided that quarterly reporting of the budget category totals would be sufficient, with a more detailed report provided semi-annually as of June 30 and December 31 each year.

- 8. Updates from BC Association of Police Boards Sandra Waddington
 - 1. Proposed dates for 2017 BCAPB Conference were previously discussed and determined under item #7, 2017 Provisional Budget. January 14, 2017 is the proposed date, dependent on the availability of Clayton Pecknold, Director of Police Services.
 - 2. It appears as though there is not much consistency between provincial Police Boards and their involvement in grievances. Some departments get involved at Step 3, some get involved if the Chief is unable to resolve a grievance, while other boards don't have any involvement in their grievance processes at all. It appears that the only consistency is between Oak Bay, Victoria & Central Saanich.
 - 3. Dates for the 2017 Police Board orientation session was also discussed previously under item #7, 2017 Provisional Budget. Dates will be April 6-8, 2017.
 - 4. The vote on the three resolutions from the AGM all passed. The third resolution will have some impact on how emergency responders are provided access to condo and apartment buildings.
 - 5. Only Oak Bay and Central Saanich Police Boards approved the BCAPB acting as a central clearing house for negotiations, etc. Larger departments have support within their municipalities or within their own budgets. As the Boards are volunteer positions, there doesn't seem to be available time or funding for someone to coordinate.
 - 6. The CAPG would like to start looking into developing an accredited national training program for Police Boards. They are looking for any interested Boards who may want to partner with them in the delivery and certification of the training. After discussion on this topic, the Board was unanimous that the idea be supported in principle. Sandra to report back to the BCAPB.

7. Regarding mental health programs, the BCAPB received a response from Police Services indicating that the Chiefs of Police are currently doing a study on this issue and that Police Services will do an inventory of what is currently available and suitable.

MOVED and seconded: That the updates from the BCAPB provided by Sandra Waddington be received.

CARRIED

9. Office of the Police Complaint Commissioner – OPCC Bulletin 12(amended)

The Office of the Police Complaints Commissioner (OPCC) would like to clarify the difference between internal discipline versus a Police Act offence. The Area Chiefs have also received a letter requesting that departments review the last four years of internal matters to determine that nothing was missed and all matters were handled properly. The focus is more on local, internal issues than Public Trust issues which would fall under the Police Act. There is still an expectation that internal issues will be reported to the OPCC, even though they would not monitor. There has been nothing to report of this nature within the past four years. Chief Brinton is currently reviewing the Discipline Policy, which was last updated in 2013.

MOVED and seconded: That OPCC Bulletin 12 (amended) be received.

CARRIED

NEW BUSINESS:	
No new business.	
ADJOURNMENT:	
RESOLVED that the open portion of the meeting convened to discuss personnel and contractual issu the <i>Police Act</i> .	
The open portion of the meeting adjourned at 6:31 p	.m.
Certified Correct:	
Secretary, Oak Bay Police Board	Chair, Oak Bay Police Board